
 
 

City of Dillingham  June 2, 2016  
Regular Council Meeting Page 1 of 3 

 C I T Y  O F  

    
 A L A S K A  
DILLINGHAM 

 
 

HMAM 

Alice Ruby, Mayor 
 

Council Members  
     Holly Johnson (Seat A)  Chris Maines (Seat B)  Misty Savo (Seat C) 
 Curt Armstrong (Seat D)  Andy Anderson (Seat E)  Paul Liedberg (Seat F) 

 

DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL 
David B. Carlson Council Chambers 

Dillingham City Hall, 141 Main Street, Dillingham, AK 99576 (907) 842-5212 
 

WORKSHOP TO REVIEW FY17 
PROPOSED BUDGET 6:00 P.M. JUNE 2, 2016 

REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. JUNE 2, 2016 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 

a. Regular Council Meeting, May 12, 2016  ...................................................... page 5 
 

b. Board of Equalization Regular Meeting, May 18, 2016 ................................. page 13 
 
 c. Special Council Meeting, May 20, 2016 ........................................................ page 15 

 
4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 

a. Resolution No. 2016-32, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council Expressing 
Thanks and a Commendation to Maryanne Dickey .....................................  . page 17 

 
b. Resolution No. 2016-33, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council Expressing 

Thanks and a Commendation to Jim McMurray .......................................... page 19 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA   
 
5. STAFF REPORTS    
 

a. City Manager and Staff Reports .................................................................... page 21 
 

b. Standing Committee Reports ........................................................................ page 51 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

a. Adopt Ordinance No. 2016-08, An Ordinance of the Dillingham City Council 
Amending Dillingham Municipal Code Chapter 8.30 – Marijuana Regulation by the 
Addition of a Section Limiting Operating Hours for Retail Marijuana Establishments 

 ...................................................................................................................... page 55 
 

7. CITIZEN’S DISCUSSION (Prior Notice or Agenda Items) 

Page 1 of 79



 
 

City of Dillingham  June 2, 2016  
Regular Council Meeting Page 2 of 3 

8.  ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
 

a. Adopt Ordinance No. 2016-08, An Ordinance of the Dillingham City Council 
Amending Dillingham Municipal Code Chapter 8.30 – Marijuana Regulation by the 
Addition of a Section Limiting Operating Hours for Retail Marijuana Establishments 

 ...................................................................................................................... page 55 
 
b. Introduce Ordinance No. 2016-09, An Ordinance of the Dillingham City Council 

Adopting the Budget and Appropriating Funds for the FY2017 City of Dillingham 
Budget (Clerk Note:  This item will be distributed under separate cover early next 
week.) ........................................................................................................... page  

 
c. Introduce Ordinance No. 2016-10, An Ordinance of the Dillingham City Council 

Amending Title 4 to Establish Fixed Costs to be Paid by Delinquent Taxpayers in 
Order to Remove a Property from the Annual Real Property Foreclosure List or to 
Redeem Such a Property After Foreclosure ................................................. page 59 

 
d. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-34, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council 

Establishing the Rate of Levy of Tax, the Date Taxes are Due, and the Delinquent 
Date for Calendar Year 2014, and Accepting the Certification of the Tax Roll (Clerk 
Note: This item will be distributed under separate cover early next week.)  .. page  

 
e. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-35, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council 

Requesting FY17 Payment in Lieu of Taxes Funding from the Department of 
Commerce, Community, and Economic Development .................................. page 69 

 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
 a. Citizen Committee Appointments  
 

1) Planning Commission, 2 Seats Open  
 
2) Senior Advisory Commission, 1 Seat Open 
 

b. Annexation Update   
 

c. Interim Task Force Borough Feasibility Study Update  
 

10. NEW BUSINESS  
 

a. Action Memorandum 2016-12, Authorizing Task Order No. 2 to CRW Engineering 
to Provide Construction Support Services for the Dillingham Lift Station 
Improvements Project ................................................................................... page 75 

 
11. CITIZEN’S DISCUSSION (Open to the Public) 
 
12. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
13. MAYOR’S COMMENTS 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 79



 
 

City of Dillingham  June 2, 2016  
Regular Council Meeting Page 3 of 3 

14. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 a. Legal Matter 
 
  1) Bingman Foreclosure Sale 
 
  2) Dillingham & Manokotak Annexation Petitions 

 
15. ADJOURNMENT  

Page 3 of 79



 

Page 4 of 79



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
      MAY 12, 2016 
 
 

City of Dillingham  May 12, 2016 
Regular Council Meeting                                      Page 1 of 7 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A regular meeting of the Dillingham City Council was held on Thursday, May 12, 2016, at the 
Dillingham City Council Chambers, Dillingham, Alaska. Mayor Alice Ruby called the meeting to 
order at 7:00 p.m.  
  
2. ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Alice Ruby was present.  
 
Council Members present and establishing a quorum (a quorum being four): 
 Misty Savo  Chris Maines   Curt Armstrong Paul Liedberg  

Andy Anderson 
 

Council members absent and excused: 
 Holly Johnson          

    
Staff in attendance: 
 Rose Loera  Dan Pasquariello  Janice Williams 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 

a. Regular Council Meeting, April 7, 2016  
 
 b. BOE Organizational Meeting, April 27, 2016 
 

MOTION: Chris Maines moved and Paul Liedberg seconded the motion to approve the 
minutes of April 7, 2016, and April 27, 2016.  

 
VOTE: The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  
 
4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 

a. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-25, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council 
Expressing Thanks and a Commendation to Francisco “Pancho” Garcia 

 
b. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-26, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council  to 

Offer Thanks and Commendation to Public Safety Employee William “Bill” Bauer  
for His Many Years of Service as a Corrections Sergeant and Police Officer  

 
c. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-27, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council to 

Offer Thanks and Commendation to Public Safety Employee Gail Norden for Her 
Many Years of Service in Her Role as the Department of Motor Vehicles Agent 

 
MOTION: Chris Maines moved and Curt Armstrong seconded the motion to approve the 

consent agenda.  
 

VOTE: The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  

Page 5 of 79



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
      MAY 12, 2016 
 
 

City of Dillingham  May 12, 2016 
Regular Council Meeting                                      Page 2 of 7 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA   
 
MOTION: Chris Maines moved and Paul Liedberg seconded the motion to approve the 

agenda.  
 

VOTE: The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  
 
5. STAFF REPORTS    
 

a. City Manager and Staff Reports 
 

City Manager Loera reported on the following items in addition to her staff report: 
 Pancho Garcia will be available to work on the sewer outfall line at least for the next 

couple of weeks; 
 Grover crane freight cost: est. at $10K, came in over $28K; funded from the 

Equipment Replacement Fund; 
 Emergency repairs on main crane: est. at less than $29K; will inspect the crane 

recently purchased as well; 
 Request to refer to Code a review of the six year period allowed to make retroactive 

adjustments; and  
 Army Corp Visit: Corps provided the name of someone who could make annual 

inspections of the lagoon erosion; the rip rap installed in 2011 is doing fine, still need 
to evaluate the rip rap installed in 2015; outfall exposure is about sixty feet, had noted 
ten feet in the resolution in the packet.   

 
b. Standing Committee Reports 
 

Code Review Committee:  Chris Maines reported staff was waiting to hear back from the Alcohol 
Board on enforcement issues; reviewed personal property items outboards and recreational 
skiffs, and not recommending any changes at this time; Misty had provided a summary of the 
issues the Marijuana Advisory Committee had vetted. 
.  
Finance and Budget Committee: Paul Liedberg reported a review of the FY17 draft budget was 
ongoing; also reviewed an alternative accounting method to allocate foreclosure expenses that 
can be passed on to the property owners in a more timely manner.          
 
Marijuana Advisory Committee:  Misty Savo reported the committee found State law regarding 
marijuana regulations was very tight and left little room for making them less restrictive. The 
committee was asking the Council to lobby the State to help solve how rural communities off the 
road system can legally get marijuana tested. Several recommendations had been sent to Code: 
1) allow marijuana use on a boat when it is in dry dock; 2) regulate the hours retail stores can be 
open for business.  
 
6. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
Mayor Ruby opened the hearing on Ordinances 2016-06 and 2016-07.  There being no 
comments the hearing closed.   
 

Page 6 of 79



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
      MAY 12, 2016 
 
 

City of Dillingham  May 12, 2016 
Regular Council Meeting                                      Page 3 of 7 

a.   Adopt Ordinance No. 2016-06, An Ordinance of the Dillingham City Council 
Amending Section DMC 4.15.030, Exemptions, to Provide a Cap on Personal 
Property Tax for Aircraft if the Assessed Valuation is More Than $300,000   

 
b. Adopt Ordinance No. 2016-07, An Ordinance of the Dillingham City Council 

Authorizing the Disposal of Municipal Property by Lease  
 
7. CITIZEN’S DISCUSSION (Prior Notice or Agenda Items) 
 
 a. David McNease 

 
David McNease had asked earlier to be on the agenda, but was not at the meeting.  
 
8.  ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
 

a.   Adopt Ordinance No. 2016-06, An Ordinance of the Dillingham City Council 
Amending Section DMC 4.15.030, Exemptions, to Provide a Cap on Personal 
Property Tax for Aircraft if the Assessed Valuation is More Than $300,000   

 
MOTION: Chris Maines moved and Misty Savo seconded the motion to adopt Ordinance No. 

2016-06.  
 
VOTE:  The motion to adopt Ordinance No. 2016-06 passed unanimously by voice vote.   

 
b. Adopt Ordinance No. 2016-07, An Ordinance of the Dillingham City Council 

Authorizing the Disposal of Municipal Property by Lease   
 

MOTION: Paul Liedberg moved and Andy Anderson seconded the motion to adopt 
Ordinance No. 2016-07.  

 
VOTE:  The motion to adopt Ordinance No. 2016-07 passed unanimously by voice vote.   

 
c. Introduce Ordinance No. 2016-08, An Ordinance of the Dillingham City Council 

Amending Dillingham Municipal Code Chapter 8.30 – Marijuana Regulation by the 
Addition of a Section Limiting Operating Hours for Retail Marijuana 
Establishments 

 
MOTION: Misty Savo moved and Chris Maines seconded the motion to introduce Ordinance 

No. 2016-08. 
 
VOTE: The motion to introduce Ordinance No. 2016-08 passed unanimously by voice 

vote.   
 
d. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-28, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council 

Authorizing the City Manager to Waive the Competitive Bid Process and Purchase 
Rip Rap from Amanka Lake Construction  

 

Page 7 of 79



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
      MAY 12, 2016 
 
 

City of Dillingham  May 12, 2016 
Regular Council Meeting                                      Page 4 of 7 

MOTION: Misty Savo moved and Paul Liedberg seconded the motion to adopt Resolution 
No. 2016-28.  

 
VOTE:  The motion to adopt Resolution No. 2016-28 passed unanimously by voice vote.   

 
e. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-29, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council 

Authorizing the City Manager to Waive the Competitive Bid Process and Use PND 
Engineers to Design the Dolphins for the Dock and to Develop the RFP 
Documents for the Repair to the Dock and Installation of the Dolphins 

 
MOTION: Misty Savo moved and Paul Liedberg seconded the motion to adopt Ordinance 

No. 2016-29.  
 
VOTE:  The motion to adopt Resolution No. 2016-29 passed unanimously by voice vote.   

 
f. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-30, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council 

Establishing a Fund for Accepting Contributions for Rewarding Those Who 
Provided Information that Led to the Resolution of a Crime  

 
MOTION: Paul Liedberg moved and Misty Savo seconded the motion to adopt Ordinance 

No. 2016-30 
 
VOTE:  The motion to adopt Ordinance No. 2016-30 passed unanimously by voice vote.   
 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
a. Territorial School 
 

This item will next be placed on the August Council agenda.  
 

 b. Citizen Committee Appointments  
 

1) Planning Commission, 2 Seats Open   
 

There were no letters of interest submitted.  
 

2) Library Advisory Board, 2 Seats Open 
 

MOTION: Chris Maines moved and Misty Savo seconded the motion to concur with the 
Mayor and appoint Lacey Calvert and Dane Grondin to the Library Advisory 
Board.  

 
VOTE:  The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.   
 

3) Senior Advisory Commission, 2 Seats Open 
 

Page 8 of 79



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
      MAY 12, 2016 
 
 

City of Dillingham  May 12, 2016 
Regular Council Meeting                                      Page 5 of 7 

MOTION: Misty Savo moved and Paul Liedberg seconded the motion to concur with the 
Mayor and appoint Frank Nicholson and VI Braswell to the Senior Advisory 
Commission.  

 
VOTE:  The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.   
 

c. DLG Petition to Annex Nushagak Commercial Fishing Waters Update 
 

This item will be taken up under the Executive Session.  
 

d. Interim Task Force Borough Feasibility Study Update 
 

Mayor Ruby reported BBNA was soliciting representatives from each community.  The first 
meeting was being planned for May 25.  

 
e. Manokotak/Dillingham Road Feasibility Study 
 

All of the parties have signed a Memorandum of Agreement except BBNA, whose understanding 
is they are responsible for administering the funds.  

 
10. NEW BUSINESS  
 

a. Action Memorandum No. 2016-08, Authorizing an Award of a Contract to CRW 
Engineering for Water System Design and Testing  

 
MOTION: Chris Maines moved and Andy Anderson seconded the motion to approve Action 

Memorandum No. 2016-08.  
 

VOTE: The motion to approve Action Memorandum No. 2016-08 passed unanimously by 
voice vote.  

 
b. Action Memorandum No. 2016-09, Authorizing the Award of a Contract to Elite 

Mechanical for Lift Station Improvements 
 

MOTION: Andy Anderson moved and Chris Maines seconded the motion to approve Action 
Memorandum No. 2016-09.  

 
VOTE: The motion to approve Action Memorandum No. 2016-09 passed unanimously by 

voice vote.  
 
c. Action Memorandum No. 2016-10, Reappointment of Chief Dan Pasquariello as 

Chief of Police.  
 

MOTION: Chris Maines moved and Curt Armstrong seconded the motion to approve Action 
Memorandum No. 2016-10. 

 
VOTE: The motion to approve Action Memorandum No. 2016-10 passed unanimously by 

voice vote.  

Page 9 of 79



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
      MAY 12, 2016 
 
 

City of Dillingham  May 12, 2016 
Regular Council Meeting                                      Page 6 of 7 

d. Action Memorandum No. 2016-11, Authorize an Award of a Contract to PND 
Engineering for Engineering Services to Design a Fish Waste Grinder 

 
MOTION: Chris Maines moved and Andy Anderson seconded the motion to approve Action 

Memorandum No. 2016-11.  
VOTE: The motion to approve Action Memorandum No. 2016-11 passed unanimously by 

voice vote.  
 
11. CITIZEN’S DISCUSSION (Open to the Public) 
 
There was no citizen’s discussion. 
 
12. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
Chris Maines:  

 Stated he was glad to see Chief Pasquariello would be serving another three years.  
 

Curt Armstrong: 
 Spoke in favor of the City drafting a letter to the State asking to help solve how rural 

communities can legally meet the testing facility regulations.  
 
Misty Savo: 

 Thanked Gail Norden, Pancho Garcia, and Bill Bauer for doing a wonder job serving the 
community; and 

 Noted some of the committee members wanted a higher tax rate than 6%, but it was 
decided it would be better to evaluate it after the businesses were up and running.   

 
MOTION: Misty Savo moved and Chris Maines seconded the motion to have the Council 

write a letter to the commission overseeing marijuana regulations and express our 
concern with legally meeting the testing regulations.  

 
VOTE:  The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  
 
Paul Liedberg: 

 Echoed Misty’s praise for Gail, Pancho, and Bill and thanked them for their service;  
 Thanked the Marijuana Advisory Committee as well as all other committee volunteers 

who serve the community; and  
 Thanked City staff for all their hard work and getting some projects done.  

 
Andy Anderson: 

 Echoed hard work being done by various committee noting it helped to make the 
Council’s job easier.  

 
13. MAYOR’S COMMENTS 
 
Mayor Ruby: 

Page 10 of 79



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
      MAY 12, 2016 
 
 

City of Dillingham  May 12, 2016 
Regular Council Meeting                                      Page 7 of 7 

 Reported she appreciated that Andy Anderson had volunteered to represent the City on 
Pen Air’s inaugural flight;  

 Reported she and Chief Pasquariello were asked to present at the Mental Health Trust 
and State Drug and Alcohol Advisory Board meetings being held in Dillingham;  

 Reminded everyone of Community clean up days;  
 Noted she appreciated Bill, Gail and Pancho for their dedication to the community, and 

wished them well; and  
 Asked everyone to join together in a moment of silence to recognize those lost since the 

last meeting.   
 
14. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

a. Legal Matter  
 

  1) Dillingham & Manokotak Annexation Petitions 
 
  2) Update from Public Safety Department 
 
MOTION: Misty Savo moved and Paul Liedberg seconded the motion to enter into executive 

session to discuss Legal Matters, Dillingham & Manokotak Annexation Petition 
and Update from Public Safety Department.  [8:03 p.m.]  

 
VOTE: The motion to enter into executive session passed unanimously by voice vote. 
 
The Council was joined by Manager Loera, Chief Pasquariello, and Janice Williams.  
 
MOTION: Chris Maines moved and Paul Liedberg seconded the motion to come out of 

executive session [8:59 p.m.].   
 
VOTE:  The motion to come out of executive session passed unanimously by voice vote. 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT  

 
Mayor Ruby adjourned the meeting at 9:00 p.m.  
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Mayor Alice Ruby  
ATTEST:      [SEAL]      
 
 
_______________________________ 
Janice Williams, City Clerk    
Approval Date: _______________________   

Page 11 of 79



 

Page 12 of 79



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  BOARD OF EQUALIZATION MEETING MINUTES 
      MAY 18, 2016 
 
 

City of Dillingham  May 18, 2016 
Board of Equalization Meeting                                      Page 1 of 2 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A regular meeting of the Board of Equalization was held on Wednesday, May 18, 2016, at the 
Dillingham City Council Chambers, Dillingham, Alaska. Mayor Alice Ruby called the meeting to 
order at 5:30 p.m.       
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Alice Ruby was present.  
 
Council Members present and establishing a quorum (a quorum being three): 

Holly Johnson 
Chris Maines  
Andy Anderson  
 

Staff in attendance: 
 Janice Williams, City Clerk  
 
Guest:  

Robert Dudley, Alaska Assessment Assistance – attended via teleconference  
 

3. APPROVE THE AGENDA 
 
MOTION: Chris Maines moved and Holly Johnson seconded motion to approve the agenda 

as presented.  
 
VOTE:  The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  
  
4. ASSESSOR’S COMMENTS 
 
Robert Dudley reported on the one appeal that was identified as unsettled, P-09-16, Robert 
Strub, for F/V Kulakak Chief.  The property owner had shown interest in protesting the taxes, but 
agreed with the settled amount.   
 
5. APPEALS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

a. Personal Property - Refer to Attached List 
 
1) Appeals Not Settled 

 
MOTION: Chris Maines moved and Holly Johnson seconded the motion to concur with the 

assessor’s comments on P-09-16, Robert Strub, for F/V Kulakak Chief. 
 

VOTE: The motion passed unanimously.  
 

2) Settled Appeals 
 

Page 13 of 79



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  BOARD OF EQUALIZATION MEETING MINUTES 
      MAY 18, 2016 
 
 

City of Dillingham  May 18, 2016 
Board of Equalization Meeting                                      Page 2 of 2 

MOTION: Holly Johnson moved and Chris Maines seconded the motion to concur with the 
assessor’s comments and approved the settled personal property appeals.  

 
VOTE: The motion passed unanimously.  
 
 b. Real Property – Refer to the Attached List 
 

1) Appeals Not Settled  
 

There were no unsettled real property appeals.  
 

2) Settled Appeals 
 

MOTION: Holly Johnson moved and Chris Maines seconded the motion to concur with the 
assessor’s comments and approved the settled real property appeals.  

 
VOTE:  The motion passed unanimously.  

 
6. CITIZEN DISCUSSION (Prior Notice or Agenda Items) 
 
There was no citizen’s discussion.  
 
7. MAYOR/COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
Committee thanked the assessor for all his preparation work prior to the BOE meeting.  
 
8. ADJOURNMENT  

 
Mayor Ruby adjourned the meeting at 5:37 p.m. 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
        Mayor Alice Ruby  
ATTEST:      [SEAL]      
 
_______________________________ 
Janice Williams, City Clerk  
 
Approval Date:_______________________   
 
 
  

Page 14 of 79



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
      MAY 20, 2016 
 
 

City of Dillingham  May 20, 2016 
Special Council Meeting                                      Page 1 of 2 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A special meeting of the Dillingham City Council was held on Friday, May 20, 2016, at the 
Dillingham City Council Chambers, Dillingham, Alaska. Mayor Alice Ruby called the meeting to 
order at 12:15 p.m.   
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Alice Ruby - present 
 
Council Members present and establishing a quorum (a quorum being four): 

Holly Johnson  Paul Liedberg – attended via teleconference    
Chris Maines   Andy Anderson      
       

Council Members absent and excused: 
 Curt Armstrong   Misty Savo  
 
Staff in attendance: 
 Rose Loera  Courtenay Carty  Jean Barrett  Eric Suttles 

 
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 
MOTION: Andy Anderson moved and Holly Johnson seconded the motion to approve the 

agenda.     
 
VOTE:  The motion passed unanimously by roll call vote.  
 
4. CITIZEN’S DISCUSSION (Prior Notice or Agenda Items) 
 
There was no citizen’s discussion.  
 
5.  SPECIAL BUSINESS 

 

a. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-31, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council 
Authorizing the City Manager to Waive the Competitive Bid Process and Repair 
the Manitowoc Crane 

 
MOTION: Holly Johnson moved and Chris Maines seconded the motion to adopt Resolution 

No. 2016-31. 
 
Manager Loera reported: 

 during an inspection on the brakes, it was found the gear assembly had a number of 
fractures;  

 the insurance company was contacted; may be able to cover repairs; 
 crane is a 1967 model.    

 
Staff reported:  

 resale value once fixed will be around $400,000;  

Page 15 of 79



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
      MAY 20, 2016 
 
 

City of Dillingham  May 20, 2016 
Special Council Meeting                                      Page 2 of 2 

 newly purchased Grove Crane does not have the same load capacity; 
 cost to lease or rent would probably not be workable due to the shipping costs;  
 loss of the main crane will be an inconvenience at times for the barge owners; some jobs 

will require help from other crane owners, such as Bristol Alliance;  
 contractor conducts an annual inspection, but may not find the problems a mechanic 

would; and  
 recommend budgeting for an annual maintenance conducted by a factory person.  

 
Discussion ensued: 

 suggest soliciting bids for repair costs from other firms, and research the price of a new 
or used model and when a replacement model could be available;  

 allow several weeks [target June 2 meeting] for staff to do their research, recognizing 
staff will be looking for models 10-15 years old, and evaluate if more capacity might be 
needed; and 

 schedule a special meeting if the information can be available earlier than two weeks.  
 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE: Holly Johnson moved and Chris Maines seconded the motion to 

postpone adoption of Resolution No. 2016-31 to the next meeting.  
 

VOTE:  The motion to postpone adoption of Resolution No. 2016-31 passed unanimously.  
 
6. CITIZEN’S DISCUSSION (Open to the Public) 
 
There was no citizen’s discussion.  
 
7. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
There were no council comments.  
 
8. MAYOR’S COMMENTS 
 
There were no mayor’s comments.   
 
9. ADJOURNMENT  
 
Mayor Ruby adjourned the meeting at 1:01 p.m.  
 
       ______________________________ 
       Mayor Alice Ruby  
ATTEST:      [SEAL]      
 
 
_______________________________ 
Janice Williams, City Clerk   
 
Approval Date:_______________________   

Page 16 of 79



 Meeting Date: May 26, 2016 

 
City of Dillingham   Resolution No. 2016-32 
Page 1 of 1 

CITY OF DILLINGHAM, ALASKA 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-32 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL EXPRESSING THANKS 
AND A COMMENDATION TO MS. MARYANNE DICKEY 
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Maryanne Dickey was appointed to the Dillingham Senior Advisory 
Commission in 2006; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Dickey contributed countless hours as a volunteer Commission 
member including serving as the Chair of the Commission; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Dickey demonstrated her commitment to the Dillingham Senior Center 
by volunteering her time to advocate for services for senior citizens in Dillingham 
including making public presentations and representing the Commission for visiting 
officials and dignitaries; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Dickey is truly an asset to the community of Dillingham and its 
residents; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council wishes to recognize Ms. Dickey’s contribution to the community 
and citizens of the City of Dillingham;   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Dillingham City Council offers this 
commendation to Ms. Maryanne Dickey with sincere thanks for sharing her time and 
talent with the citizens of Dillingham and making it a better place to live.    
 
PASSED and ADOPTED by the Dillingham City Council on    . 
 
 
 ________________________________ 
 Alice Ruby, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      [SEAL] 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Janice Williams, City Clerk 

Page 17 of 79



 

Page 18 of 79



 Meeting Date: June 2, 2016 

 
City of Dillingham   Resolution No. 2016-33 
Page 1 of 1 

CITY OF DILLINGHAM, ALASKA 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-33 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL EXPRESSING THANKS 
AND A COMMENDATION TO JAMES “JIM” MCMURRAY – RADIO CALL #76 
 
WHEREAS, Jim McMurray has lived in Dillingham for over 35 years; and  
 
WHEREAS, during that time Jim joined the Dillingham Fire Department in 1977 and the 
following year was one of the main founders of the Dillingham Rescue Squad and was 
heavily involved in recruitment and training for new members; and  
 
WHEREAS, Jim also became well versed in the finer points of fire engineering and 
water supply and remains the most knowledgeable department member on those 
subjects; and 
 
WHEREAS, Jim was also the lead engineer on almost every fire call that the Dillingham 
Volunteer Fire Department answered; and 
 
WHEREAS, he also taught many other engineers over the years; and  
 
WHEREAS, Jim started driving the ambulance on rescue squad calls, and within a few 
years had earned the EMT II level; and   
 
WHEREAS, Jim was elected Assistant Fire Chief in 1980, and 2001 was named 
Firefighter of the year; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council wishes to formally recognize Jim’s tireless service to the 
community and citizens of the City of Dillingham;   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Dillingham City Council offers this 
commendation to Jim McMurray with sincere thanks for sharing his time and talent with 
the citizens of Dillingham and making it a better place to live.    
 
PASSED and ADOPTED by the Dillingham City Council on June 2, 2016. 
 
 
 ________________________________ 
 Alice Ruby, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:       [SEAL] 
 
_________________________________ 
Janice Williams, City Clerk 

Page 19 of 79



 

Page 20 of 79



Our Vision.  To have an infrastructure and city workforce that supports a sustainable, diversified and 
growing economy.  We will partner with others to achieve economic development and other common goals 
that assure a high quality of living, and excellence in education. 
City of Dillingham Page 1 of 2 

 C I T Y  O F  

    
 A L A S K A  

Mayor Dillingham City Council 
Alice Ruby Holly Johnson 
  Chris Maines 
Manager  Misty Savo 
Rose Loera Curt Armstrong 
 Andy Anderson 
 Paul Liedberg 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Date: May 27, 2016 
 
To: Mayor and City Council 
 
From: Rose Loera, City Manager 
 
Subject: May Monthly Report 
 
  
Vacancies –Wastewater/Water Operator 
 
We hired a public works director after being interviewed by a team of four.  We were all very 
pleased with our recommendation.  His background consists of working for DOT for about 26 
years.  He is a civil engineer with tons of experience in RFP’s, contract negotiations, 
procurement, management and is willing to obtain certification in the individual services we 
provide.  He grew up in Nome and obtained his undergraduate and masters in Fairbanks.  He 
wants to get back into doing hands on work in a rural community!  Yeah!!! 
 
Contracts/Agreements Signed – Signed an agreement with BESC for Landfill 
Sampling/Reporting for $16,993 for the Spring 2016 period.  We are required by DEC to do a 
spring and fall sampling and report for the Landfill which is in our 2016 budget.   
 
Signed the task order for PND to Design the Dolphins for the City Dock. 
 
Budget – Finance & Budget Committee completed the development of the FY 17 budget which 
will be introduced at the June 2nd council meeting. 
 
Grants – Agnew:Beck is working on our BBEDC Infrastructure grant for $1,000,000 for paving 
the road to the School and the road connecting to Lil’ Larry Road.   
 
Request for Proposals (RFPs) – Assessment Services is currently being advertised. 
 
Fish Grinder – the design for the fish grinder is currently on hold pending a meeting with 
Curyung Tribal Council.  Our first estimate for building the fish grinder was $250,000 and after a 
closer look the engineers are thinking more like $500,000.  Before we spend the money to 
design we would like to see if Curyung Tribal is still interested in having the City pursue this 
project.  
 
BBEDC Seasonal Interns – we were awarded 2 landfill operators, 1 librarian and 1 harbor 
assistant seasonal interns.  We had applied for 8 positions. 
 

Page 21 of 79



Our Vision.  To have an infrastructure and city workforce that supports a sustainable, diversified and 
growing economy.  We will partner with others to achieve economic development and other common goals 
that assure a high quality of living, and excellence in education. 
City of Dillingham Page 2 of 2 

Hazard Mitigation Plan – will be presented to the council at the June 16, 2016 Council 
meeting. 
 
Personnel Policy Revisions – the approved revisions of the Personnel Policy will not go into 
effect until after the Unions negotiations are complete.  If they have any issues with the changes 
we proposed we may need to bring them back to the council for further action. 
 
Annexation – Brooks is recommending hiring a consultant to assist us in our annexation efforts.  
The last time around with annexation we used George Cannellos who was able to speak about 
the importance of a strong regional hub to rural Alaska in general.  The cost shouldn’t be more 
than $2,500. 
 
Dillingham Housing Development – according to the Bristol Bay Housing Authority in 2017 
they will be developing 4 homes and 2 acquisitions.  They are currently looking for property for 
the homes.  Curyung Tribe provided them a resolution at their May meeting in support of the 
development.   
 
The Finance Director and I will be meeting with BBHA staff to get a better understanding of their 
conveyance process to the owners of the homes.  Both organization’s staff are new to the 
process so the meeting is to get us all on the same page.  
 
 
Out of the Office – June 6 & 7 and FMLA tentative from June 27 – July 22 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22 of 79



 1 

City of Dillingham 
House District 37 / Senate District S 

 
 

~ 5/26/16 ~ 
 
 

29th Alaska State Legislature ~ 4th Special Session 
Day 125 (4th Day of Special Session) 

 
 

MAY  2016  –  LEGISLATIVE REPORT 
 

Cliff Stone / City Lobbyist 
 
 

~ Alaska Government Shutdown Looms on July 1st / Layoffs Notices go out June 1st ~ 
 

<><><><> 
 

What seems like a replay of last year, the Legislature has failed to pass a budget for the upcoming fiscal 
year.  Layoff notices are likely, as there doesn’t seem to be any sense of urgency on the part of legislators. 
 
The extended session finally adjourned Sine Die on May 18th – the 121st day.  The governor immediately 
called them back into a special session beginning May 23rd in Juneau.  Little has been accomplished since 
the opening bell.  Counting last year, the 29th Legislature has now spent over 100 extra days of debate and 
partisanship.  For a review of the “call” go to the following websites. 
 
Proclamation issued on May 19, 2016 
http://gov.alaska.gov/newsroom/2016/05/fourth-special-session-of-the-twenty-ninth-alaska-state-legislature 
 
First Supplemental Proclamation issued on May 23, 2016 
http://gov.alaska.gov/newsroom/2016/05/fourth-special-session-first-supplemental-proclamation 
 
With 11 bills to consider, it is perhaps the largest agenda for a special session since statehood.  The 
operating and capital budgets are both on the table along with a host of taxes for consideration.  In 
addition, the Alaska Permanent Fund restructuring has to be passed out this session to even fund 
government.  Other subjects include foster care, adoption, health care, and major medical coverage.  An 
oil and gas infrastructure development program will be deliberated along with revising the tax credit 
program for these commodities. 
 
A shimmer of light did appear for Dillingham before they adjourned as the joint conference committee on 
the budget did close out the Dept. of Law budget.  They finally approved the House number of $340,000 
for the attorney general’s office in your community.  We can only hope that this item stays safely tucked 
in bed when the budget is finally approved.   
 
On the dark side of the budget dilemma is the looming shutdown of funding for Fish & Game personnel 
should a budget not be approved by July 1st.  If there is any disruption at all, the impacts will be 
immediate and painful as there are 100’s of state employees that are involved in all aspects of Alaska’s 
fisheries.  This says nothing of the Revenue personnel that would not be there to process fish taxes. 
 

<><><><> 

Page 23 of 79



 2 

 
BILLS ON THE MOVE 

 
Passed Legislation – Awaiting Transmittal to the Governor 

 
The legislation below was noted in my last report, but had not yet passed out of conference committee or 
had a floor vote.  These bills can be found at http://www.akleg.gov/basis/start.asp for a more detailed 
explanation. 
 
I’ve listed pertinent bills below that may have an impact on the City of Dillingham or the community in 
general.  There may be others that I haven’t flagged.  See the entire list awaiting transmittal at: 
HTTP://WWW.LEGIS.STATE.AK.US/BASIS/PASSED_LEG.ASP?SESSION=29&SEL=4  
 
Besides an abbreviated title for the bill, I’ve provided a very brief synopsis of what the bill hopes to 
achieve.  Once a law is signed, if there is an effective date clause, then the intent of the legislation is not 
recognized until that date is met.  In addition, it also takes the affected departments time to write 
regulations concerning a bill to ensure the intent is carried out. 
 
HB 75 / Regulation of Marijuana by Municipalities 
An opt-in provision was finally agreed upon as a compromise in this bill.  These new sections are for 
unincorporated communities, Native villages and the unorganized borough.  However, I would suggest 
that your city attorney review all the provisions of this new law to see how it might affect you.  This 
legislation attempts to further define and clarify provisions of the original marijuana ballot measure and 
provide additional processes for implementing AS 17.38 at the municipal level. 
 
HB 137 / Hunting, Fishing, Trapping License Fees Increase 
This legislation basically raises the fees on residents and nonresidents alike for licenses and tags in the 
harvesting of fish and game.  This bill is projected to raise an additional $9 million in revenue every year. 
The exemptions for these activities used to read under the age of 16, but now residents under the age of 18 
do not have to have a license for these activities.  Nonresident fishing licenses has also increased in age to 
18.  The provisions for a free permanent identification card (PID) for residents over 60 have not changed, 
although some language was added to specify these individuals must process a valid ID card, i.e. drivers 
license, along with their PID. 
 
HB 156 / School Accountability Measures and Sex Education 
This bill deletes statutory language that requires the Board of education to “CONFORM TO...” or to 
“IMPLEMENT...” NCLB (No Child Left Behind), which is amended federal law over K-12 education 
(ESEA (Every Student Succeeds Act), 1965).  It does not affect the current state testing infrastructure and 
assessment systems except that parents will have the immediate option to opt out of that testing. This 
ensures parental control through elected local school board members and state legislators instead of the 
far-off federal government.  The final version contains certain prohibitions against sex education in the 
classroom.  Governor Walker has been encouraged to veto this bill from a broad spectrum of people 
primarily because of the sex education clause. 

 
SB 91 / Omnibus Crime Bill 
This legislation is an exhaustive rewrite of the criminal justice statutes.  Proponents of this bill say it will 
provide savings through improved treatment services, sentencing restricting, intensified prison re-entry 
programs and triage of other measures.  The hope is that it will also reduce recidivism. 
 
 

Page 24 of 79



 3 

SB 196 / PCE Fund 
This bill creates a revenue stream for the “new” Community Assistance Program (SB 210) through excess 
funds from the Power Cost Equalization fund.  When there are excess funds in the PCE, up to $30 
million will be appropriated to the Community Assistance Program and distributed to communities using 
the new formula.  The conference committee version changed the balance where the excess funds go first, 
but it maintains the same general principal with 70% of excess going to the Community Assistance 
Program and 30% going back into the PCE to strengthen the fund.  While it is not a perfect solution, it 
will sustain the program and help support those smaller rural communities who have a lesser ability to 
raise revenue from other sources such as property or sales taxes. 
 

<><><><> 
 

GOVERNOR'S CORNER  http://gov.alaska.gov 
 

The governor’s office will continue to post press releases and other items of interest at the website above.   
 

<><><><> 
 

IMPORTANT DATES / DEADLINES 
 

Governor’s Deadlines once a bill has been transmitted 
Fifteen days, Sundays excluded, to act on a bill if the Legislature is in session.  
If the Legislature has adjourned, the Governor has twenty days, excluding Sundays. 
 

<><><><> 
 

COMMITTEE HEARINGS / FLOOR SESSIONS 
 

Go to the BASIS – http://www.legis.state.ak.us  ‘Click’ on the appropriate section – Right side of page 
 
Live on the Web   [ www.360north.org ] 
Most committee hearings can be seen and heard on Gavel Alaska/360 North. 
Streaming Video 
Meetings streamed outside of Juneau are archived to the Legislature’s Vimeo site: 
https://vimeo.com/akltv  or  http://alaskalegislature.tv  
 

<><><><> 
 

WEBSITES OF INTEREST 
 

2016 Regular Session/4th Special Session List of Legislators and staff 
http://akleg.gov/docs/pdf/session_phone_list.pdf 
 
2016 House / Senate – Standing and Special Committees http://akleg.gov/docs/pdf/commlist.pdf   
 
Legislative Finance Website: http://www.legfin.akleg.gov   
This link provides you with options to view specifics for the Capital and Operating Budgets. 
 
Governor’s Office of Management & Budget (OMB) website - https://www.omb.alaska.gov  
Pick the Quick Link on the right column for your inquiry. 
 
Congressional Delegation websites – 
http://murkowski.senate.gov/public     www.sullivan.senate.gov      http://donyoung.house.gov 

<><><><> 
 

~ End Report ~ 
 

Have a blessed Memorial Day!  Enjoy your families!  ~ Cliff 

Page 25 of 79



 

City of Dillingham Page 1 of 2 
Our Vision. To have an infrastructure and city workforce that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing 
economy. We will partner with others to achieve economic development and other common goals that 
assure a high quality of living, and excellence in education. 
 

 C I T Y  O F  

    
 A L A S K A  

Mayor Dillingham City Council 
Alice Ruby Holly Johnson 
  Chris Maines 
Manager Misty Savo 
Rose Loera Curt Armstrong 
 Andy Anderson 
 Paul Liedberg 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

Date: May 22, 2016 
 
To: Rose Loera, City Manager   
 
From:  Janice Williams, City Clerk  
 
Subject: Monthly Staff Report  
 
 
One ordinance is up for adoption June 2, 2016: 

 Adopt Ordinance No. 2016-08, An Ordinance of the Dillingham City Council Amending 
Dillingham Municipal Code Chapter 8.30 – Marijuana Regulation by the Addition of a 
Section Limiting Operating Hours for Retail Marijuana Establishments 

 
The Marijuana Advisory Committee had recommended posting the State’s marijuana 
regulations.  The public can access the State’s website via the City’s website or Facebook 
page.  Click on the icon labeled AS 17.38 Marijuana Initiative FAQs.  This webpage will also 
direct you to the administrative code, 3 AAC Chapter 306 Regulation of Marijuana Industry 
(127 pages).  
  

 

Page 26 of 79



 

City of Dillingham Page 2 of 2 
Our Vision. To have an infrastructure and city workforce that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing 
economy. We will partner with others to achieve economic development and other common goals that 
assure a high quality of living, and excellence in education. 
 

 
 

Commission/Board Seats Vacant.     
Planning Commission  
There are two seats open.  There are no letters of interest on file.  
Senior Advisory Commission 
There is one seat open.  We will start advertising for this seat.    
 
HELPFUL TIP(S).  
Introducing an ordinance.  In the motion state the date the ordinance will be brought before 
the public for a public hearing.   
 
Example.  I moved to introduce Ordinance No. ____ and schedule it for a public hearing on 
__________.  
 
A new section added to the code is not underlined, only any new wording that has been added 
to an existing section.   

Page 27 of 79



Page 28 of 79



Page 29 of 79



Page 30 of 79



Page 31 of 79



Page 32 of 79



Page 33 of 79



Page 34 of 79



City of Dillingham Page 1 of 1 
Our Vision. To have an infrastructure and city workforce that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing 
Economy. We will partner with others to achieve economic development and other common goals that 
Assure a high quality of living, and excellence in education. 

 C I T Y  O F  

    
 A L A S K A  

Mayor Dillingham City Council 
Alice Ruby Holly Johnson 
 Chris Maines 
Manager Misty Savo 
Rose Loera Curt Armstrong 
 Andy Anderson 
 Paul Liedberg 

 
  MEMORANDUM 

 
Date: May, 24, 2016 
 
To: Rose Loera, City Manager   
 
From:  Braden Tinker, Fire Coordinator   
 
Subject: Department Head Report  
 

 
Summarization of EMS Responses – 13 Calls; 26.5 Total Man Hours 
 

o 3 Sick Person 
o 3 Overdose/Suicide Attempts 
o 1 Gun Shot Wound  

  

o 1 Chest Pain 
o 2 Trauma 
o 3 Medevac Transports 

 

Summarization of Fire Responses – 1 Call; 1.0 Total Man Hour 
+ 

o 1 Fire Calls 
 

PROJECTS COMPLETED  
 Hose testing has been completed. 
 Apparatus check-offs are complete,  
 All Ambulance reports are being entered into Aurora, billing for April has been finished. 
 May`s trainings all went as planned, we held a run report review with our medical director 

that went very well.  
 

ON-GOING PROJECTS  
 Run Reports 
 The Downtown Station renovation is still on going. Roll up doors mounted on the 

exterior of the building will be in place to accommodate larger apparatus. (latest 
update)  

 SCBA Bottles have been shipped to Yukon Fire Protection Services for hydro testing.  
 Hydrant testing will be taking place as soon as I receive all the updated materials to 

conduct it.  

Page 35 of 79



 

Page 36 of 79



Our Vision. To have an infrastructure and city workforce that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing 
economy.  We will partner with others to achieve economic development and other common goals that 
assure a high quality of living, and excellence in education. 
City of Dillingham Page 1 of 1 

 C I T Y  O F  

    
 A L A S K A  

Mayor Dillingham City Council 
Alice Ruby Holly Johnson 
  Chris Maines 
Manager  Misty Savo 
Rose Loera Curt Armstrong 
 Andy Anderson 
 Paul Liedberg 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Date: May 24, 2016 
 
To: Rose Loera, City Manager 
 
From: Sonja Marx, Librarian 
 
Subject: May Monthly Report 
 
 
The Library Advisory Board will meet with a fully appointed Board on Tuesday, May 24th 
from 5:30 -7 pm.  Both vacant seats are now filled.  Lacey Calvert will fill Seat C which 
expires September, 2017.  Dane Grondin was appointed to Seat D to fill the remaining 
term that expires in September, 2016.  On the agenda, will be the discussion of the 
weeding process of materials and how donated items are selected to be added to our 
collection or not.  Staff have been utilizing the CREW Guidelines which was adopted as 
a standard for small and medium sized libraries.  A full reading of the procedures will be 
discussed with the plan to form a committee to include someone from the Library staff, 
Library Advisory Board & Friends of the Library, and an interested patron from the 
community to assist in the collections development process. 
 
The Carlson House Book Sale will happen again at the Old Territorial Building over 
Memorial Day Weekend, May 28th - 30th, 2016 thanks to the many volunteers (Saturday, 
Sunday and Monday from 1-5 pm).  Again, half the proceeds will go to the FOL to help 
support the Dillingham Public Library.  The Friends of the Library will have their own 
book sale on Saturday, June 11th in the same building. 
 
BBEDC is advertising the Youth Internship Library Aide for us again this summer.  The 
Seasonal Assistant Librarian will also be provided by BBEDC for the busy summer 
activity.  The City is very appreciative of these employment opportunities for area 
residents that BBEDC funds.  Our patrons more than triple during the fishing season. 
 
The Summer Reading Program theme this year is “On your Mark, Get Set…Read!”  
 

Library Stat report for May 2nd – 21st, 2016: 

Patron Visits:  2,050       Computer Use:  382       Wireless Use:  693  
Story Hour:  35   Other Visits (including students):  169   Museum Use:  7           
Movies Shown:  2     AWE Station Use:  22   Volunteer hours logged:  2 
Library Advisory Board meeting to be scheduled at the next meeting 

Page 37 of 79



 

Page 38 of 79



Our Vision. To have an infrastructure and city workforce that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing 
economy. We will partner with others to achieve economic development and other common goals that 
assure a high quality of living, and excellence in education. 
City of Dillingham  Page 1 of 2 

 C I T Y  O F  

    
 A L A S K A  

Mayor Dillingham City Council 
Alice Ruby Holly Johnson 
  Chris Maines 
Manager  Misty Savo 
Rose Loera Curt Armstrong 
 Andy Anderson 
 Paul Liedberg 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Date:      May 25, 2016  
 
To: Rose Loera / City Manager 
 
From: Jean Barrett / Port Director 
 
Subject: May Monthly report 
 
May has been a busy month. Everything is early so it makes it feel like I am behind the 
eight ball when in reality everything is happening on a regular timeline. We have had a 
few setbacks this early season at both the dock and the harbor, but nothing that will not 
be overcome. 
 
Dock 

 Things are in full swing at the dock. The new 3 man crew seems to be working 
out well and our coverage is good. 

 One of the aforementioned setbacks we have run into this spring is at the dock in 
the form of the Manitowoc crane.  This is the main crane and our only source of 
unloading large pieces of freight. After we noticed some issues with the main 
boom, some slipping and sticking, we contracted with Western Pacific Crane out 
of Anchorage to come and work on the crane and give it a good going over and 
an annual service. In the course of the service, the main gear box that moves the 
boom and cables was found to have multiple cracks and deemed the crane 
unsafe for use. This has set off a series of actions and reactions.   
 
First we got a price to fix the crane, City held a Special Council meeting at which 
staff was directed to find other estimates and also research a replacement within 
a reasonable cost that fit the needs at the dock.  At the time of this report, we 
haven’t had too much luck finding anyone else except Western Pacific to give us 
a repair estimate, but we have had some luck in finding a couple of worthy 
replacements at a decent price. We are looking further into these. We are 
somewhat fortunate to have purchased the Grove crane as it has helped some in 
the loading and unloading of smaller freight in the absence of the Manitowoc. 

Page 39 of 79



Our Vision. To have an infrastructure and city workforce that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing 
economy. We will partner with others to achieve economic development and other common goals that 
assure a high quality of living, and excellence in education. 
City of Dillingham  Page 2 of 2 

 Since the last Council meeting we have given the go ahead to PND to continue 
with the design on the dolphins and also to start advertising the whole project. 
We hope to open bids in late July, and take our recommendation to the Council 
on August 4th. 

 
Harbor 

 The dredging of the harbor started a few days early. Fortunately we were able to 
put the dredge into the water with the Manitowoc without any problems.  Getting 
it back on the dock is going to be the interesting part. The crew may need to 
make another trip back to Dillingham later on in the fall to put the dredge up for 
the winter. 

 The Volvo Loader has come up with an issue.  We have noticed that the 
hydraulic fluid has been draining out of the holding tank.  We have not seen any 
sign of it draining onto the ground.  We also noticed that the emergency brake 
has been hard to release and that we cannot get the transmission to shift into 4th 
gear. 
 
We spoke to a tech today at Construction Machinery, and he thinks that the 
parking brake has failed and that is causing the fluid to seep into the 
transmission.  We are exploring the possibility that this was caused from an 
accident which occurred in late winter/ early spring. A report has been submitted 
to our insurance company. 

 Since early in May we have been running the ice machine to keep the halibut 
fishermen in ice for their catch.  We have had some issues with the fine tuning of 
the machine, but have been able to dial it in to the point of working as it should. 

 The South ramps are out and already have a handful of vessels hanging off of 
them.  We hope to launch the East floats sometime in the next few weeks. 

 There has been much discussion about a fish grinder in our future.  There has 
been a few meetings discussing what kind of grinder, where we should locate 
this type of facility and also talk of cost which is always a sticking point.  This 
seems to be where we are right now.  More to be reported as we get deeper into 
this project. 

 
That is all from the port department at this time. 

 
 

Port of Dillingham Advisory Committee - I am at this time working on scheduling a Port 
of Dillingham Committee meeting within the next week. 

Page 40 of 79



City of Dillingham  Page 1 of 2 
Our Vision. To have an infrastructure and city workforce that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing 
economy. We will partner with others to achieve economic development and other common goals that 
assure a high quality of living, and excellence in education.  
 

 C I T Y  O F  

    
 A L A S K A  

Mayor                                                                                                 Dillingham City Council 
Alice Ruby Holly Johnson 
  Chris Maines 
Manager  Misty Savo 
Rose Loera Curt Armstrong 
 Andy Anderson 
 Paul Liedberg 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Date:   June 2, 2016 
To:   City Manager Rose Loera  
From: Chief Dan Pasquariello  
Subject:   Public Safety June 2016 report  
                       
  
Police: 
  

 389   Calls for service 
  46 Incident reports 
   20 Persons arrested 
   14  Title 47/Protective custody      
  9 Citations issued 

 
On the 12th the Chief spoke before the Alaska Mental Health Board and the Advisory Board on 
Alcoholism and Drug Abuse.  Topics of discussion were drug and alcohol problems in 
Dillingham and the crime associated with it, as well as mental health commitments.  As a result 
of the Chief’s (and other local leaders and organizations) testimony the board sent a letter to the 
legislature recommending continuing fund of the Dillingham DA office. 
 
On the 21st we assisted the Curyung Tribal Council and BBAHC with their annual bike rodeo.  
The event was well attended and the officer involved had a lot of fun. 
 
June 6th-8th two of our officers will be trained in Small Boat operation by the US Fish and 
Wildlife Service.  Two of our current officers took this course a couple of years ago.  We are 
attending this training in anticipation of annexation, as well as for safety reason as we 
occasionally respond to calls in the harbor waters. 
 
On the 11th we responded to a weapons call where a man had been shot.  After a 21/2 hour 
stand-off we able to get the suspect to surrender without anyone else getting hurt. 
 
Corrections: 
 

   28  Total Inmates  
   14 Title 47/Protective custody 

 
The corrections division has been short-staffed for a while, because of inter-departmental 
transfers and resignations.  Our most recently hired Corrections Officer is now trained and 
working on his own. We have re-hired a trained corrections officer that had recently resigned.  
The division is once again fully-staffed.   
 
 

Page 41 of 79



City of Dillingham  Page 2 of 2 
Our Vision. To have an infrastructure and city workforce that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing 
economy. We will partner with others to achieve economic development and other common goals that 
assure a high quality of living, and excellence in education.  
 

 
Dispatch: 
 

 475      Calls for service  
 82%    Dispatched to Dillingham Police 
 13%   Dispatched to Alaska State Troopers 
   4%   Dispatched to EMS/Fire 
   1%   Dispatched to Animal Control 
  125      911 calls received 

 
AST is transitioning away from having us dispatch for them. Their after-hour calls are currently 
being routed to a southeast AST post.  They are offering us a $5,000 special services contract 
(down 75% from the $20,000 they currently give us) to “occasionally” dispatch for them for the 
next fiscal year.  We are going to decline the contract. 
 
The cameras located on a pole at the east ramp of the boat harbor are not working.  We have 
been in contact with the vendor and it will require a site visit, boom truck rental, and component 
replacements to get them operational again.   The cameras located at the north and south ends 
of the harbor are still operational. We have decide at this time to not repair the east ramp 
cameras (which will most likely cost several thousands of dollars) until an additional funding 
source can be obtained. 
 
Animal Control: 
 

   1    animals impounded 
   1    dog bite case 
   2    dogs returned to owners 
   1    dog adopted from shelter  
   1    dog sent to Anchorage 
 13    rabies/parvo shots given 

 
On the 23rd the ACO attended a teleconference sponsored by Animal Behavior Associates.  The 
topic was, Three Issues Surrounding Body Language of Dogs.  Animal Behavior Associates  
hosts monthly teleconferences dealing with animal  issues that Animal Control, Shelters,  
and Veterinarians see daily.  It’s a continuing Education program in the Animal Control Field.      
 
DMV: 
     

  0     Registrations/Titles 
  0     Driver’s License/IDs 
  0     CDLs 
  0     Road tests 

 
DMV office has been closed all month.  Our new DMV/Admin assistant was training in 
Anchorage the week of May 23rd.  The DMV office should be open again to the public the first 
week of June. 
  

Page 42 of 79



City of Dillingham Page 1 of 2 
Our Vision. To have an infrastructure and city workforce that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing 
economy. We will partner with others to achieve economic development and other common goals that 
assure a high quality of living, and excellence in education. 

 C I T Y  O F  

    
 A L A S K A  

Mayor Dillingham City Council 
Alice Ruby Holly Johnson 
 Chris Maines 
Manager   Misty Savo 
Rose Loera Curt Armstrong 
 Andy Anderson 
 Paul Liedberg 

 
  MEMORANDUM 

 
Date:           May 24, 2016 
 
To: Rose Loera, City Manager 
 
From: Hope Jackson, Public Works Office Assistant 
 
Cc: Dillingham City Council 
 Herman Shade, Public Works Foreman 
 
Subject:  Monthly Staff Report 
 
 
 Street Dept.: 

 Grading roads and swept bike paths; 
 Mobilized equipment to Snag Point to address erosion on outfall line; 
 Hauled glass bins to the landfill; 
 Assisted with City Clean-Up. 

 
Water/Sewer Dept.: 

 Conducted monthly water and sewer sampling; 
 Keeping lift stations, sewer treatment and water treatment plant cleaned; 
 Completing monthly DMR reports and turning them in to D.E.C. 
 Hired and training new employee; 
 Helped contractors understand the issues at the Lift Station; 
 Trained Staff to do monthly DMR Reports; 
 Put back together the Sewer Outfall. 

Shop Dept.: 
 Staying on top of equipment and vehicle maintenance; 
 Repaired 345 Excavator, new cylinder installed and now in use; 
 Replaced axel and spindle on Police Vehicle # 92; 
 Waiting on new welder on the barge; 
 Waiting for Baulderson for Landfill Loader, on barge. 

B&G Dept.: 
 Maintaining city buildings; 
 Training new B&G assistant; 
 Performed monthly generator test; 
 Assisted with City Clean Up.  

Page 43 of 79



City of Dillingham Page 2 of 2 
Our Vision. To have an infrastructure and city workforce that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing 
economy. We will partner with others to achieve economic development and other common goals that 
assure a high quality of living, and excellence in education. 

 
Landfill Dept.: 

 Collecting money and keeping up with paper work; 
 Received gravel for cover at the active cell; 
 Free Landfill Days – May 14-15, 2016;  
 Landfill Operator moved to Water/Wastewater May 23.  

 
 

Page 44 of 79



 

City of Dillingham  Page 1 of 1 
Our Vision. To have an infrastructure and city workforce that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing 
economy. We will partner with others to achieve economic development and other common goals that 
assure a high quality of living, and excellence in education.  

 C I T Y  O F  

    
 A L A S K A  

Mayor Dillingham City Council 
Alice Ruby Holly Johnson 
 Chris Maines 
Manager   Misty Savo 
Rose Loera Curt Armstrong 
 Andy Anderson 
 Paul Liedberg 

 
  MEMORANDUM 

 
Date: May 19, 2016 
 
To: Rose Loera, City Manager 
 
From: Ida Noonkesser, Senior Center Director 
 
Subject:  Monthly Staff Report 
 
 
This has been a pretty normal month, but daily counts are not yet in SAMS for the 
month, so the May numbers will be reported next month. 
 
We have had no new renters in the month of May.  Our usual renters, the Pinochle 
player’s group continues to use the dining room every Friday and every third Saturday 
the Quilters rent the Senior Center. 
 
Icicle Seafoods donated five cases of napkins to the Senior Center.  We appreciate their 
donations as always. 
 
VI Braswell and Frank Nicholson were reappointed on May 12, 2016.  This is for a 
three-year term that will expire April 2019. 
 
We started delivering lunches to Marluut Eniit.  Their cook is working with us to help 
prepare and deliver the meals. 
 
We had a rummage sale to raise money for our programs with items donated to the 
Center.  The sale went well. 
 
We had our advisory board meeting in May 11th and this will be the last meeting till 
August 10th. 
 
 

 

Page 45 of 79



 

Page 46 of 79



  

 
City of Dillingham  May 11, 2016 
Regular Meeting                                      Page 1 of 3 

 
 
Senior Advisory Committee       Regular Meeting Minutes 
      May 11, 2016 
 
   
I. CALL TO ORDER 
The regular meeting of the Senior Advisory Committee was held on May 11, 2016 at the 
Dillingham Senior Center, Dillingham, Alaska.  Maryanne Dickey,Chair, called the meeting to 
order at 1:05 p.m.  
 
II. ROLL CALL 
Members present: (Quorum is four)  
 Maryanne Dickey via teleconference 
 Frank Nicholson 
 V.I. Braswell 
 Johanna Bouker 
 Flossie Andersen 
 June Ingram 
 Jackie Russell  
   
Members absent: (excused) 
 Holly Johnson 
  
Guests/Staff in attendance: 
 Ida Noonkesser, Director 
 Rose Loera, City Manager 
     
III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
MOTION:  Flossie Andersen moved to approve the March 11, 2016 Minutes, Jackie Russell 
seconded, Motion Carried unanimously. 
 
IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
MOTION: V.I. Braswell moved to approve the Agenda, Flossie Andersen seconded,  Motion 
Carried unanimously. 
. 
V. STAFF REPORT  

a.  Staff Report 
Ida had a written staff report that is attached.   
 
VI. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Rummage Sale 
Ida reported the Senior Center is still accepting donations and will hold it May 21st with set up 
on Friday, May 20th.  The sale will be from 10 am to 2 pm but may close earlier depending 
how sale is going.  Anything left over will be donated to SAFE.   
 
 

Page 47 of 79



  

 
City of Dillingham  May 11, 2016 
Regular Meeting                                      Page 2 of 3 

b. Donations (BBNA, Icicle Seafoods, Paul Kropoff) 
Ida reported these organizations donated items to the center – BBNA frozen items, Icicle 
donated 15 cases of napkins, and Paul Kropoff donated 2 cases of bread.  Hope also 
donated frozen fish, and Rose said she has some she will donate. 
 

c.  New Van 
Rose reported they received a grant of about $85,000 for a new van that cost about $95,000 
and it will take another $5,000 for freight to Dillingham. 
 

d. Rose Loera Grant Update 
Rose gave a verbal report for some grants the city is working on:  $150k from the Rasmussen 
Foundation to fix the solarium and front entrance; $25k from the Mental Health Trust Fund for 
match to the Rasmussen grant; $40k of which about $20k to replace windows; $25k to 
change the lighting in the center to LED lights to help cut down on electricity; and the center 
needs posters to have people donate and those under 60 to pay the full amount for lunch.  
Ida will talk with the aides and HOPE staff on their programs. 
 
VII. OLD BUSINESS 
 
BBNA Position – Ida has not checked into this position. 
Tread Mill – Ida will return the money to those who bought tickets and it will be put in the 
garage sale. 
Grant for Senior Center – did the city get the state grant for its program, we have not heard 
yet from the state. 
Budget till end of June – Ida reported she should be able to hold her budget through the end 
of June. 
Peter Pan Donation – they usually donate at the end of the season. 
 
VIII. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
June explained she really works hard to keep people signed up with Medicaid and ask if the 
two BBNA employees at the center could assist people who can’t afford to go to the hospital 
to keep their Medicaid going. 
 
Gramma’s House Board – Dave Bouker sat on the board and who could serve to take his 
place. 
 
Maryanne Dickey explained she is resigning as of today due to health problems that she will 
be actively going after.  The committee was sad to hear of this and wished her well, and 
asked a letter of thanks be sent to Maryanne.  She asked if the committee wanted to appoint 
someone as Chair at this time, no action was taken but V.I. was asked to be a point of 
contact for the committee over the summer months. 
 
IX. COMMITTEE COMMENTS 
 
No comments were received at this time. 
 
X. NEXT MEETING 

Page 48 of 79



  

 
City of Dillingham  May 11, 2016 
Regular Meeting                                      Page 3 of 3 

The next meeting will be August 10th at 1:00 p.m.   
 
XI. ADJOURNMENT  
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:55 p.m. 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Vivian Braswell 
Recorder 

Page 49 of 79



 

Page 50 of 79



 
FINANCE AND BUDGET COMMITTEE MEETING   MEETING MINUTES 
              MAY 24, 2016

 

Finance and Budget Committee Meeting  May 24, 2016 
 City of Dillingham   Page 1 of 3 

 
1.  CALL TO ORDER 
 
The Finance and Budget Committee met on Tuesday, May 24, 2016, in the City Council 
Chambers, Dillingham, AK. Paul Liedberg, Chair, called the meeting to order at 5:32 p.m. 
 
2.  ROLL CALL 
 
Committee Members present: 

   
Paul Liedberg   Mayor Alice Ruby  Rose Loera  
Andy Anderson Curt Armstrong              Navin Bissram 
 
3.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

a. Minutes of April 25, 2016 
 
MOTION:  Andy Anderson moved and Mayor Ruby seconded the motion to approve the 

minutes of April 25, 2016.  
 
VOTE:  The motion passed unanimously by voice vote. 

 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
MOTION:  Mayor Ruby moved and Rose Loera seconded the motion to approve the 

agenda.  
 
VOTE:  The motion passed unanimously by voice vote. 
 
5. STAFF REPORTS 
 

a. FY16 Quarterly Review of the Financial Statements  
 

Navin Bissram reviewed the March financial statements.  
Follow-up: 

 Staff to research if the decrease in the sales tax revenue can be attributed mainly to 
the decrease in fuel costs.  
 

6. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
a. Fiscal Policy Development - Review Internal Controls (Placeholder) 
 
b. Tobacco Tax (Placeholder) 

 
c. Sales Tax Exemption (Placeholder)  
 
 1)  Update on Letters Sent Out 
 

Page 51 of 79



 
FINANCE AND BUDGET COMMITTEE MEETING   MEETING MINUTES 
              MAY 24, 2016

 

Finance and Budget Committee Meeting  May 24, 2016 
 City of Dillingham   Page 2 of 3 

 
d. Recommend Alternative to Allocation of Foreclosure Costs 
 

Discussion ensued:  
 Commented on the proposed administrative overhead costs incurred between first 

publication of foreclosure list and next 60 days, to include employee time spent 
sending out letters and postage for certified mailings.   

 
MOTION: Mayor Ruby moved and Rose Loera seconded the motion to recommend to 

the Council assessing a flat fee of $150 for stage 1 of the foreclosure 
process.  

 
VOTE: The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  
 
Discussion ensued: 

 Reword all sections to consistently apply “the costs of foreclosure” [remove portion 
of, remove all reasonable, remove all].   

 
MOTION: Mayor Ruby moved and Rose Loera seconded the motion to recommend the 

proposed ordinance be introduced at the next regularly scheduled Council 
meeting.  

 
Discussed stage 2 and 3 of the foreclosure process would be based on actual costs.  
 
VOTE:  The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  
 
7. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Bingman Foreclosure Sale  
 
Navin Bissram reviewed the foreclosure costs attributed to the sale of the Bingman 
properties. The estimated sales tax filings, along with unpaid utility bills and business 
license fees, were included in the court judgment against Bingman in the amount of $292K, 
which was not disputed by him.   
 
This item will remain on the agenda for now.   
 
Manager Loera reported Bingman paid off two lots for which the City had the deed to the 
property.  He has since received a letter to reimburse him for the amount he paid and the 
city has filed a correction that the certification to redeem the property was done in error.   
 

b. Review Landfill Fees  
 

Manager Loera reported when the landfill rates were changed in 2014, the rates for the 
Dillingham Refuse were not adjusted. Committee suggested bringing back a review of all 
landfill rates in 2017.   

 
 

Page 52 of 79



 
FINANCE AND BUDGET COMMITTEE MEETING   MEETING MINUTES 
              MAY 24, 2016

 

Finance and Budget Committee Meeting  May 24, 2016 
 City of Dillingham   Page 3 of 3 

 
 c. Recommend Mill Rate  
 
MOTION: Mayor Ruby moved and Curt Armstrong seconded the motion to recommend 

a mill rate of 13 mills to the Council.  
 
VOTE:  The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  
 
8. PUBLIC/COMMITTEE COMMENT(S) 
 
There were no public or committee comments.  
 
9. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:10 p.m.  
 
The Committee proceeded to continue their review of the FY17 City proposed budget.  
  
 
 __________________________ 
 Paul Liedberg, Chair 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Janice Williams, City Clerk 
 
Approved: _________________________ 

Page 53 of 79



 

Page 54 of 79



Page 55 of 79



 

Page 56 of 79



Page 57 of 79



Page 58 of 79



Page 59 of 79



Page 60 of 79



Page 61 of 79



Page 62 of 79



Page 63 of 79



Page 64 of 79



Page 65 of 79



Page 66 of 79



Page 67 of 79



Page 68 of 79



Page 69 of 79



Page 70 of 79



Page 71 of 79



Page 72 of 79



Page 73 of 79



Page 74 of 79



Page 75 of 79



Page 76 of 79



Page 77 of 79



Page 78 of 79



Page 79 of 79


	M 5.12.2016 Regular Council Meeting
	M 5.18.2016 BOE Organizational Meeting
	M 5.20.2016 Special Council Meeting
	clksr052016
	Financial Report - March 31 2016
	firsr2016 (3)
	libsr052016
	pwdsr0516
	srcs052016
	Sen Adv Comm_Minutes_5_16doc
	O 2016-08
	R 2016-35



